4.164

BEAUREGARD PARISH WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 2 BEAUREGARD PARISH POLICE JURY DERIDDER, LOUISIANA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH AUDITOR'S REPORT

DECEMBER 31, 2007

Under provisions of state law, this report is a public document. A copy of the report has been submitted to the entity and other appropriate public officials. The report is available for public inspection at the Baton Rouge office of the Legislative Auditor and, where appropriate, at the office of the parish clerk of court

Release Date 8 27 08

A Professional Corporation

John A. Windham, CPA

1620 North Pine Street DeRidder, LA 70634 Tel: (337) 462-3211 Fax: (337) 462-0640

Suzanne H. Elliott, CPA Engagement Manager Office of Legislative Auditor 1600 North Third Street PO Box 94397 Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397

RE: Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2

On the financial statements submitted on June 30, 2008 for the year ending December 31, 2007, the wrong year was entered on the financial statements. I have corrected Statements A-E on pages 4-11. The previous statements had June 30, 2007 as the year-end, this has been changed to reflect the actual year end as December 31, 2007. The attached audit report has been corrected and submitted to the client.

I am sorry for this error; I try hard to check every detail of the audit report and failed to catch this error before it was sent to the legislative auditor. If anything else is needed in correcting this, please let me know.

Thank you,

Terri Windham

Table of Contents

	Statement	Page(s)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	-	1-2
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:		
Statement of Net Assets	Α	4-5
Statement of Activities	В	6
Statement of Net Assets – Proprietary Fund	С	7-8
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes		
in Net Assets – Proprietary Fund	D	9
Statement of Cash Flows Proprietary Fund	Е	10-11
Notes to the Financial Statements	- Schedule	12-18 Page(s)
Other Supplemental Schedules		
Schedule of Per Diem Paid to Board Members	1	20
Other Reports		
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings	2	22
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with		
Government Auditing Standards	-	23-24

John A. Windham, CPA

A Professional Corporation

John A. Windham, CPA

1620 North Pine Street DeRidder, LA 70634 Tel: (337) 462-3211 Fax: (337) 462-0640

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Commissioners Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2 Singer, Louisiana

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, of Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2, a component unit of the Beauregard Parish Police Jury, DeRidder, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's management. My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinions.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the business-type activities of Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2, as of December 31, 2007, and the changes in financial position and cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, I have also issued my report dated May 20, 2008 on my consideration of Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's internal control over financial reporting and my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* and important for assessing the results of my audit.

Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2, a component unit of the Beauregard Parish Police Jury, DeRidder, Louisiana, has not presented management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States has determined is necessary to supplement, although not required to be part of, the basic financial statements.

Board of Commissioners Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2 Singer, Louisiana

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's basic financial statements. The schedules of per diem paid to board members and prior year audit findings are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedules of per diem paid to board members and prior year audit findings have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in my opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

formall. Ulindham, CPA

DeRidder, Louisiana May 20, 2008

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Assets December 31, 2007

	Business-Type Activities - <u>Enterprise Fund</u> Water and Sewer
Assets	
Current Assets	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 647,839
Receivables:	
Accounts	40,474
Ad valorem taxes	268,137
Prepaid insurance	13,494
Total current assets	\$ 969,944
Restricted Assets	
Cash	\$ 772,894
Noncurrent Assets	
Land	\$ 5,324
Utility plant and equipment - net	2,5 89,74 0
Bond issuance cost - net	17,877
Total noncurrent assets	\$ 2,612,941
Total assets	\$ 4,355,779
	(Continued)

Statement of Net Assets December 31, 2007

	Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund Water and Sewer
Liabilities	
Current Liabilities	
Accounts payable	\$ 9,138
Payroll taxes payable	2,990
Pension payable - ad valorem tax	10,039
Accrued interest payable	1,504
Current portion of general obligation bonds	45,000
Total current liabilities	\$ 68,671
Liabilities payable from restricted assets	
Accrued interest payable	\$ 16,035
Current portion of revenue bonds	89,979
Total liabilities payable from restricted assets	\$ 106,014
Noncurrent Liabilities	
General obligation bonds - due in more than one year	\$ 42,782
Revenue bonds - due in more than one year	1,134,354
Total noncurrent liabilities	\$ 1,177,136
Total liabilities	<u>\$ 1,351,821</u>
Net Assets	
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt	\$ 1,282,949
Restricted for:	
Debt service	666,881
Unrestricted	1,054,128
Total net assets	\$ 3,003,958
Total liabilities and net assets	\$ 4,355,779
	(Concluded)

Statement of Activities For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Program Activities	F	Expenses	C	am Revenues harges for Services	siness-type Activities
Business-type activities: Water and sewer	\$	611,860		466,949	 (144,911)
	Gene	ral revenues:			
	Inv	estment earnin	gs		11,873
	Ad	valorem tax re	ceipts		295,978
		Г	'otal gen	eral revenues	 307,851
		(Change in	net assets	 162,940
	Net a	ssets at beginn	ing of ye	ar	2,841,018
	Net a	ssets at end of	year		\$ 3,003,958

Statement of Net Assets Proprietary Fund December 31, 2007

i

ł

	Business-Type Activities - <u>Enterprise Fund</u> Water and Sewer
Assets	
Current Assets	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 647,839
Receivables:	
Accounts	40,474
Ad valorem taxes	268,137
Prepaid insurance	13,494
Total current assets	\$ 969,944
Restricted Assets	
Cash	\$ 772,894
Noncurrent Assets	
Land	\$ 5,324
Utility plant and equipment - net	2,589,740
Bond issuance cost - net	17,877
Total noncurrent assets	\$ 2,612,941
Total assets	\$ 4,355,779 (Continued)

Statement of Net Assets Proprietary Fund December 31, 2007

	Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund Water and Sewer	
Liabilities		
Current Liabilities		
Accounts payable	\$ 9,138	
Payroll taxes payable	2,990	
Pension payable - ad valorem tax	10,039	
Accrued interest payable	1,504	
Current portion of general obligation bonds	45,000	
Total current liabilities	\$ 68,67 1	
Liabilities payable from restricted assets	• • • • • • • •	
Accrued interest payable	\$ 16,035	
Current portion of revenue bonds		
Total liabilities payable from restricted assets	\$ 106,014	
Noncurrent Liabilities		
General obligation bonds - due in more than one year	\$ 42,782	
Revenue bonds - due in more than one year	1,134,354	
Total noncurrent liabilities	\$ 1,177,136	
	Ψ ι,177,150	
Total liabilities	\$ 1,351,821	
	<u></u> _	
Net Assets		
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt	\$ 1,282,949	
Restricted for:	↓ 1,202,7 1 7	
Debt service	666,881	
Unrestricted	1,054,128	
Total net assets	\$ 3,003,958	
Total liabilities and net assets	<u>\$ 4,355,779</u>	
	(Concluded)	

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

	Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund Water and Sewer	
Operating revenues		
Charges for services	<u>\$ 466,949</u>	
Operating expenses		
Personal services	\$ 100,428	
Supplies	69,356	
Contractual services	182,063	
Utilities	47,285	
Depreciation	124,266	
Amortization	3,529	
Total operating expenses	\$ 526,927	
Income (loss) from operations	\$ (59,978)	
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)		
Investment income	\$ 11,873	
Interest expense	(74,894)	
Ad valorem taxes	295,978	
Ad valorem taxes - pension expense	(10,039)	
Total nonoperating revenue	\$ 222,918	
Change in net assets	\$ 162,940	
Net assets at beginning of year	2,841,018	
Net assets at end of year	\$ 3,003,958	

Statement of Cash Flows Proprietary Fund For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

	Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund
	Water and Sewer
Cash flows from operating activities:	
Cash received from customers	\$ 462,936
Cash payments to suppliers	
for goods and services	(304,389)
Cash payments to employees for services	(99,947)
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$ 58,600
Cash flows from capital and related	
financing activities:	
Acquisition and construction of capital assets	\$ (19,654)
Principal paid on long term debt	(121,083)
Interest paid on long term debt	(76,769)
Net cash used for capital and related	
financiing activities	\$ (217,506)
Cash flows from non-capital and related	
financing activities:	
Ad valorem tax collections	\$ 308,308
Pension paid on ad valorem taxes	(10,689)
Net cash provided by non-capital and	
related financing activities	\$ 297,619
Cash flow from investing activities:	
Interest income	\$ 11,873
Net increase (decrease) in cash	
and cash investments	\$ 150,586
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning	1,270,147
Cash and cash equivalents, ending	\$ 1,420,733
	(Continued)

Statement of Cash Flows Proprietary Fund For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

	Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
	Water and Sewer
Reconciliation of loss from operations to net cash provided by operating activities:	
Loss from operations	\$ (59,978)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations to net cash provided by operating activities:	
Depreciation Amortization	\$ 124,266 3,529
Change in assets and liabilities: Increase in accounts receivable Decrease in accounts payable Increase in payroll taxes payable Increase in prepaid insurance Net cash provided by operating activities	(4,013) (5,170) 481 (515) \$ 58,600 (Concluded)

Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2007

INTRODUCTION

The Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2 was created by the Beauregard Parish Police Jury under Louisiana Revised Statute 33:3811. The purpose of the water district is to provide water service to rural residents of the district. The governing body is composed of five compensated board members appointed by the Beauregard Parish Police Jury.

The District is located in central Beauregard Parish in the southwestern region of the State of Louisiana. The District provides rural water service to approximately 1,600 residents and employs approximately three employees.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2 conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. Such accounting and reporting procedures also conform to the requirements of Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:517 and to the guides set forth in the Louisiana Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide, and to the industry audit guide, Audits of State and Local Governmental Units.

GASB Statement No. 14, *The Reporting Entity*, established criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statement, the Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2 is considered a component unit of the Beauregard Parish Police Jury. As a component unit, the accompanying financial statements are included within the reporting of the primary government, either blended into those financial statements or separately reported as discrete component units.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2 reports the following proprietary fund:

The Proprietary Fund accounts for operations (a) where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in the proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Charges for services of providing water services to residents comprise the operating revenue of the District's enterprise fund. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expense, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the entity's policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District's cash is considered to be cash on hand, and demand deposits. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. State law and the Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's investment policy allow the entity to invest in collateralized certificates of deposits, government backed securities, commercial paper, the state sponsored investment pool, and mutual funds consisting solely of government backed securities.

D. Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

E. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the Enterprise Fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond convenants.

F. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The District maintains a threshold level of \$5,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest expense included during the current fiscal year was \$74,894. Of this amount none was included as part of the cost of capital assets under construction in connection with the District's construction projects.

All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Description	Estimated Lives
Distribution system	40-50 years
Buildings and building improvements	20-40 years
Furniture and fixtures	5-15 years
Machinery and equipment	3-15 years
Vehicles	5 years

G. Compensated Absences

The District has no formal leave policy and does not provide for the accumulation and vesting of leave.

H. Long Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, longterm debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

I. Extraordinary and Special Items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. Special items are transactions or events within the control of the District, which are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. The district had no extraordinary or special items as of December 31, 2007.

J. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At December 31, 2007, the District has cash (book balances) totaling \$1,420,733 as follows:

Demand deposits	\$ 688,999
Money market accounts	565,500
Certificates of deposits	123,293
Interest bearing demand deposits	 42,941
Total	\$ 1,420,733

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties.

At December 31, 2007, the District has \$1,422,273 in deposits (collected bank balances). These deposits are secured from risk by \$486,657 of federal deposit insurance and \$935,616 of pledged securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3).

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB Statement 3, R.S. 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the District that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.

3. RECEIVABLES

The receivables of \$319,301 at December 31, 2007, are as follows:

Class of receivable	
Accounts	\$ 40,474
Ad valorem taxes	 278,827
Total	\$ 319,301

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007, for the primary government is as follows:

	B I		1	ncreases	Decreases		_	Ending Balance	
Business-type activities:									
Capital assets, not being depreciated									
Land	\$	5,324	\$	-	\$	-	\$	5,324	
Construction in progress		-		1,902		-		1,902	
Total business-type activities									
not being depreciated		5,324		1,902		•		7,226	
Capital assets being depreciated									
Vehicles		105,975		-		-		105,975	
Buildings		41,329		-		-		41,329	
Utility plant and improvements	4	1,692,869		-		-		4,692,869	
Machinery and equipment		186,230		17,751		-		203,981	
Total capital assets being depreciated		5,026,403		17,751		-		5,044,154	
Less accumulated depreciation for:									
Vehicles		73,285		8,793		-		82,078	
Buildings		12,579		1,033		-		13,612	
Utility plant and improvements	2	2,113,500		98,968		-		2,212,468	
Machinery and equipment		132,686		15,472		-		148,158	
Total accumulated depreciation		2,332,050		124,266		-		2,456,316	
Total business-type assets being depreciated, net	<u>\$</u> 2	2,694,353	\$	(106,515)	\$			2,587,838	

5. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES

The payables of \$68,671 at December 31, 2007, are as follows:

Accounts	\$	9,138
Payroll taxes		2,990
Pension plan - ad valorem tax		10,039
Accrued interest		1,504
Current portion of bonds	_	45,000
Total	\$	68,671

6. **RETIREMENT SYSTEMS**

All employees of the District are members of the Federal Social Security System. The District contributes 7.65% of gross salaries up the appropriate statutory limits to that system. The Federal Social Security System administrates the plan and pays benefits.

7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of the long-term debt transactions of the District for the year ended December 31, 2007:

	(General				
	Obligation Bonds		Revenue Bonds		Total	
Bonds payable, January 1, 2007	\$	125,881	\$	1,307,317	\$	1,433,198
Bonds retired		(40,000)		(86,341)		(126,341)
Deferred amount on refunding		1,901		3,357		5,258
Bond payable, December 31, 2007	\$	87,782	\$	1,224,333	\$	1,312,115

The following is a summary of the current (due in one year or less) and the long-term (due in more than one year) portions of long-term obligations as of December 31, 2007:

	(General						
	Oblig	ation Bonds	Bonds Revenue Bonds			Total		
Current portion	\$	45,000	\$	89,979	\$	134,979		
Long-term portion	_	45,000		1,150,273	_	1,195,273		
Total	\$	90,000	\$	1,240,252	\$	1,330,252		

Bonds payable at December 31, 2007 are comprised of the following individual issues:

General obligation bonds:

\$375,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1998,	
dated June 1, 1998, due in annual installments of \$30,000 to	
\$45,000 through March 1, 2009; interest at 5.00%, issue secured	
by levy and collection of ad valorem tax	<u>\$90,000</u>
Revenue refunding bonds:	
\$245,000 Taxable Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998,	
dated June 1, 1998, due in annual installments of \$7,835 to \$26,319	
through April 1, 2010; interest at 7.00%	<u>\$80,252</u>
Revenue refunding bonds:	
\$1,412,000 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002,	
dated September 1, 2002, due in annual installments of \$20,000 to	
\$157,000 beginning April 1, 2003 through April 1, 2017;	
interest at 5.00%	\$1,160,000

Year Ending	General Obligation Bonds		Revenue	Revenue Bonds		
	Principal	Interest	Principal	Interest	Total	
2008	45,000	3,375	89,979	61,128	199,482	
2009	45,000	1,125	98,954	55,866	200,945	
2010	-	-	99,319	50,346	149,665	
2011	-	-	117,000	44,675	161,675	
2012	-	-	123,000	38,675	161,675	
2013-2017		<u> </u>	712,000	92,500	804,500	
Totals	<u>\$ 90,000</u>	\$ 4,500	\$ 1,240,252	\$ 343,190	<u>\$ 1,677,942</u>	
A summary of bo	ond issuance cost at	December 31, 200	07 is as follows:			
Bond issuance c	ost		\$	45,146		
	ated amortization			(27,269)		
Net bond issuand	ce cost			<u>17,87</u> 7		
RESTRICTED	NET ASSETS					
RESTRICTED A	ASSETS					
Revenue bonds	s sinking funds			\$	688,999	
Revenue bonds	s reserve fund				7,040	
Revenue bonds	s depreciation and o	contingency funds			76,856	
Total				\$	772,895	
Less:						
LIABILITIES PA	AYABLE FROM R	ESTRICTED AS:	SETS			
Current portion	n of revenue bonds			\$	89,979	
Accrued intere	st on revenue bond	5			16,035	
Total				\$	106,014	

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of December 31, 2007 including interest payments of \$347,690 are as follows:

Restricted net assets

9. AD VALOREM TAXES

8.

Ad valorem taxes are collected and remitted by the local sheriff, if taxes are not paid, a sheriff's sale is held and the property is sold to satisfy the taxes due on the property. Due to this, the majority, if not all ad valorem taxes are collected; therefore no allowance account for uncollectibles has been established.

666,881

\$

Ad valorem taxes are levied on a calendar year basis and become due on January 1 of each year. The following is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes:

	Authorized Millage	Levied Millage	Expiration Date
Taxes due for: Operation and Maintenance	11.02	11.02	Renewed Annually
General Obligation Bonds	11.00	11.00	Renewed Annually

Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2

Notes to the Financial Statements (Concluded)

The following are the principal taxpayers and related property tax revenues for the entity:

			% of Total	Ad V	/alorem Tax
	Туре	Assessed	Assessed	Re	venue for
Taxpayer	of Business	Valuation	Valuation	M	unicipality
Meriwether Louisiana	Timber Management	\$ 1,876,859	11%	\$	41,328
Swift Energy Company	Oil exploration	1,754,704	11%		38,639
Total		\$ 3,631,563	22%	\$	79,967

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES

Schedule of Per Diem Paid to Board Members For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

The following is a breakdown of commissioner's fees for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Board Member	Number ofMeetings	Amount of Per Diem		Amount		
Ronnie Cagle	13	\$	50	\$	650	
Bill White	14		50		700	
Paul Cooley	13		50		650	
Delores Crabtree	14		50		700	
Norris Watt	5		50		250	
Total				\$	2,950	

The schedule of compensation paid to board members is presented in compliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature and within the provisions of R.S. 33:3819.

20

OTHER REPORTS

Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings Year Ended December 31, 2007

Findings - Financial Statement Audit

There were no prior year audit findings reported as of December 31, 2006.

John A. Windham, CPA

A Professional Corporation

John A. Windham, CPA

1620 North Pine Street DeRidder, LA 70634 Tel: (337) 462-3211 Fax: (337) 462-0640

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2 Singer, Louisiana

I have audited the financial statements of the the business-type activities of Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007, which collectively comprise Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's, basic financial statements and have issued my report thereon dated May 20, 2008. I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, I considered Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of Beauregard Parish Waterworks No. 2's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Beauregard Parish Waterworks No. 2's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's internal control.

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that I consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Board of Commissioners Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2 Singer, Louisiana

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Beauregard Parish Waterworks District No. 2's, financial statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Commissioners, and the Legislative Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties, although under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

futull. Windham, CPA

DeRidder, Louisiana May 20, 2008